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            1            (BOARD MEETING COMMENCED AT 11:10 A.M.)

            2               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Good morning, everyone.

            3               THE COMMISSION:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman.

            4               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We will call to order

            5   the Board of Commissioners at 11:10 on December 16,

            6   2009.  The first order of business is the Approval of

            7   the Previous Minutes of November 4, 2009.  Have all of

            8   our members had an opportunity to review the previous

            9   minutes, and if so, are there any comments, questions or

           10   corrections?

           11               COMMISSIONER ROTELLA:  Motion to approve.

           12               COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  Second.

           13               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

           14   approve the previous minutes, seconded by Commissioner

           15   Farnum.  Discussion on the previous minutes?  Are there

           16   any comments on the previous minutes?

           17               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           18               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

           19   those in favor will say aye.

           20               THE COMMISSION:  Aye.
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           21               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed?

           22               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           23               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none opposed,

           24   and that motion carries.

           25                  (MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY)
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            1               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Next order of business

            2   is Old Business.  Is there any old business to come

            3   before the Commission?  Old business of any nature?  Old

            4   business?

            5               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

            6               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, moving

            7   along to Item Number 4, the Executive Director's Report.

            8   Mr. Secretary, do you have a report for us today?

            9               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I do.

           10               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Proceed.

           11               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  The first item I would

           12   like to present to the Board is an award to one of our

           13   staff members from Field's Point.  He's part of the

           14   Maintenance Group across the street.  His name is Joe

           15   Crosby.  We'll have Joe come up in a few minutes, but I

           16   wanted to let you know why we were presenting this award

           17   to him.

           18      In front of you, you all have a handout that's
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           19   called, Bucket Tool Hoist, and this is a unit that Joe

           20   thought of himself.  He conceived it, he created it, and

           21   he actually modified it as a, used it across the street,

           22   very clever, very imaginative piece of apparatus that is

           23   used for the work that our staff has to do in tanks.

           24      We have some very deep tanks across the street.  Many

           25   times we have to drain them.  We have to go in and
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            1   inspect them, replace parts, make repairs, so you have

            2   to lower tools in and out.  The men get in and out on a

            3   ladder, but you have tools and you have equipment that

            4   need to be lowered down to them.

            5      Historically, they've used the 5-gallon bucket that

            6   you see hanging from the hoist, and there'd just be a

            7   rope; and they would lower it down in that fashion.

            8   That got a little clumsy, sometimes a little unsafe, and

            9   so Joe came up with a great idea on how to remedy that

           10   problem; and as you flip through the pages here, you can

           11   see how simple the apparatus is, yet how effective it

           12   is.  There's a little pulley on the top.

           13      Many of the tanks there are different configurations.

           14   The railings are all different on a lot of the tanks,

           15   and so Joe's invention here is really adaptable to all

           16   the different situations that they encounter across the
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           17   street.

           18      It's something that I believe the Operations and

           19   Maintenance staff has really appreciated the fact that

           20   it's on at the scene now, and many times these are the

           21   types of things that go by completely unrecognized and

           22   unacknowledged, yet are really an important part of what

           23   we do here and reflect on the great staff that we have

           24   at every facet and at every level of the Bay Commission.

           25      So, we wanted Joe to be recognized, not only before
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            1   his peers that he works with every day, but in front of

            2   the Board that is ultimately all of our employer.  So,

            3   we asked Joe to come over here today, and I see some of

            4   his co-workers are here to join in recognizing Joe

            5   Crosby.

            6      And in appreciation for his ingenuity and effort, we

            7   have this very nice pen and pencil set for him that we

            8   hope he uses for many years in good health.  So, Joe

            9   would you come up here and be recognized, please.

           10                     (AWARD PRESENTATION)

           11               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Thank you, Joe.  Someday

           12   you may see these on QVC or something like that, and

           13   you'll have five more minutes to order one, if you need

           14   it.  Again, we really do have a very good staff, and
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           15   this is just a small way that we can recognize them for

           16   all their good work; and it certainly makes my job, Paul

           17   Nordstrom's job and all the people that run the

           18   treatment plant easier when we have employees like Joe

           19   and his co-workers.  So, that was the first item.

           20      The next item is, you should have a schedule of Board

           21   meetings for 2010.  Karen's passing it out now.  We went

           22   through, and we polled all of you to find out what would

           23   the best day, Wednesdays best or you rather go to a

           24   Tuesday, Thursday type of scenario; and it was

           25   overwhelming that Wednesday is the best day for the
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            1   majority of you, so that's what we'll continue to do.

            2      It will all be, basically, the same pattern,

            3   committee meetings before the Board Meeting, and there

            4   are eight scheduled meetings.  If we need a special

            5   meeting, we will, of course, alert you to that.  If we

            6   don't have enough agenda items, we will also let you

            7   know that so that you can take it off of your calendar

            8   should that occur.

            9      So, if you could pencil those into your 2010 books.

           10   If there's one or two that you can't make and you

           11   already know because you're going to be on vacation, if

           12   you could let Karen know ahead of time, that would be
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           13   helpful to us, just in terms of planning.  I know that

           14   one or two of you enjoy the warmer climates during the

           15   winter months.  I hope to join you some day in that

           16   regard.  I've got a ways to go.

           17      The next item I have is my monthly report.  Knowing

           18   that we have some action items and some presentations,

           19   I'll try to be brief, but I say that to you every month.

           20      Overall treatment has been good.  We did have one

           21   violation at Bucklin Point.  It had to do with nitrogen

           22   removal.  It ended up at 8.7 as opposed to the required

           23   8.5.  That's shown on Page 2 of the report.  Other than

           24   that, things have been going well treatment-wise.

           25      We do get some change in the process as we go from
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            1   the summer into the fall and winter and then at the

            2   other end of the cycle the same thing.  The process

            3   changes, so we have some challenges, but the staff rises

            4   to those every year.

            5      We've been doing a lot of inspections, especially on

            6   our wet weather tanks, getting in and making sure that

            7   they're all in good shape and updating any parts that

            8   look like they've undergone a significant amount of

            9   wear.  This is on Page 4, by the way.  We have tested

           10   all of our emergency generators under load, so we're
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           11   ready for the bad weather, should it occur.

           12      As you probably well know, it was a very wet month in

           13   October.  Bucklin Point got 6.65 inches of rain, and as

           14   a result, we've had to use the wet weather facilities

           15   over there on a couple of occasions; and we did have,

           16   the north diversion structure did overflow twice during

           17   the month of October at Bucklin Point.

           18      The tunnel itself received about 210 million gallons

           19   of flow during the month of October, all of which was

           20   pumped into Field's Point and treated.  We're going to

           21   have a first-year operation summary for you a little

           22   later in the meeting.

           23      Interceptor Maintenance, which is shown on Page 7,

           24   there were no dry weather bypasses during the month of

           25   October, and the septage station was very busy in
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            1   October with 319 trucks coming in and almost 900,000

            2   gallons of septage.

            3      While I'm on that topic, I want to let you know that

            4   we did some analysis of the activity at the septage

            5   receiving station, and one of the things that we've

            6   noticed over the years is that in the month of January

            7   and February, the activity on Saturdays, because we are

            8   open on Saturdays up there to accept discharges, is
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            9   really minimal, so we put the word out to the septage

           10   haulers that starting just after the first of the year,

           11   we'll be closed for about six Saturdays.

           12      We've gotten a little bit of feedback from them, and

           13   we told them that if they have some emergency situations

           14   to let us know.  It'd still be open Monday through

           15   Friday, but that sometimes we get virtually no activity

           16   up there on Saturdays; and it's a way of reducing our

           17   expenses and cutting overhead costs.  Generally, they're

           18   okay with it.  There's a few of them that are nervous

           19   about it, then along about the first of March, we'll go

           20   back to the six-day-a-week activity because they really

           21   do utilize that facility quite regularly.

           22      Our Engineering group, which starts on Page 10, has

           23   been busy with negotiation with the I Fast, which is the

           24   fixed film system we're going to use for nitrogen

           25   removal because we have some Buy American provisions
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            1   that need to be complied with.  You'll have an action

            2   item on that later in the meeting.

            3      CSO Phase II design continues full speed ahead.

            4   We're always looking at how we can best construct those

            5   facilities with minimal or by minimizing the impact on

            6   the public.  That will be difficult to do on that phase
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            7   because it's all, basically, new pipes in the ground.

            8      And Page 13, the North Providence Inflow Study, which

            9   is the smoke testing, is coming to a completion.  We do

           10   need authorization for a change order which the CEO gave

           11   us earlier in the morning, and we'll need Board action

           12   on that shortly.

           13      The Construction Division is in the process of

           14   wrapping up a few projects as well as mobilizing on a

           15   couple of others.  The Field's Point job there is

           16   mobilization going on, improvements at Ernest and up at

           17   the septage station, all projects that you agreed to

           18   award over the past few months, but we continue to make

           19   progress on the tunnel odor control projects.

           20      The new animal control facility, the foundations are

           21   being completed, and they should be getting out at the

           22   ground on that fairly soon.  The Central Avenue Pump

           23   Station, we're coming to completion on that project, and

           24   we have an action item for you on that particular

           25   contract under the CEO report.
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            1      Administration and Finance on Page 17, the monthly

            2   billing has been going very well.  We've had a high

            3   volume of calls on a couple of the days, but our staff

            4   handled those well; and our cash flows have improved
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            5   significantly.  If you'd like more detail on that, I can

            6   have Karen Giebink give you a more fuller explanation of

            7   how things have been going.

            8      Overall, our Operating Budget for 2010 is on track.

            9   Our two largest expenses, biosolids and electricity, are

           10   about 5 percent under budget.  Personnel costs are

           11   slightly under budget and the chemicals that are on

           12   budget.  Those are the biggest expense items.  That's

           13   shown on Page 17, and we've already begun work on

           14   developing our FY '11 Operating Budget.

           15      You should know that the PUC has opened a new docket

           16   geared towards the issues faced by the regulated water

           17   suppliers.  We're also affected by that because there's

           18   been a continued decline in consumption, and that has

           19   impacted the water companies in terms of what they've

           20   been billing; and it also impacts us to a certain degree

           21   as well.

           22      And the PUC recognizes that in the industry, this is

           23   an issue, and they're going to try to work with the

           24   regulated community to try to identify how they can

           25   mitigate the impacts of that activity.
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            1      If you skip to Page 24, I want you to just note that

            2   we've had our workplace wellness flu shot clinic.  It
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            3   was held on October 13th, and 109 flu shots were

            4   administered to NBC employees.

            5      We're expecting to hear about the availability of the

            6   H1N1 vaccine in the next couple of weeks, and maybe I

            7   think in January was the estimate as to when they might

            8   be able to deliver that to us.

            9      Page 25, Policy, Planning & Regulation, we have

           10   received notification from the New England Environmental

           11   Water Association that we are going to receive the Burke

           12   Safety Award for 2009 at their annual meeting in

           13   January, so we'll have the appropriate staff going up to

           14   be acknowledged once we receive that award.

           15      Page 27 I note that the Port of Providence has

           16   installed a new evacuation system, an alert system which

           17   includes a siren and a public address system.  They

           18   tested it back on October 23rd.  We took part in that

           19   test.  They want to make sure everyone was, in fact,

           20   alerted and received the appropriate instructions on

           21   what to do, and that's to deal with situations that

           22   there might be a chemical release because there's a big

           23   chemical manufacturer further down in the Port, a

           24   hostile intruder, or a sudden weather emergency.

           25      We had a few stormwater mitigation projects that were
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            1   approved in October.  Those are shown on page, starting

            2   on Page 30, and for 2009, the projects of that nature

            3   that we've worked with our users on we are about at the

            4   500,000 gallon mark of flow avoided during a rainstorm.

            5   So, it's just a small item but something that aggregate

            6   over the years can make a big impact on the combined

            7   sewer overflow problem that we have.

            8      We had no violations from Field's Point in October.

            9   Bucklin Point we had the one total nitrogen monthly

           10   average number that exceeded the permit because of some

           11   process issues that we're analyzing and trying to make

           12   sure that it does not happen again.

           13      On Page 33 and 36, we show how the EMDA and the Lab

           14   continue to be very busy with thousands of samples being

           15   taken and analyzed, and the yearly totals, of course,

           16   are approaching what we had in the prior year.  Almost

           17   22,000 samples taken, 85,000 parameters analyzed for.

           18   Part of the reason why we need to keep our eye on a new

           19   laboratory, which maybe in 2010, we can begin to move

           20   more aggressively on.

           21      The Executive Division report begins on Page 38, and

           22   a couple of items I'd like you to take note of is that

           23   the November 5th lien sale ended up being very

           24   successful.  When we originally identified the accounts

           25   for lien sale consideration several months ago, there

                        ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC.  (401) 946-5500



file:///z|/...0Meeting%20Agenda%20and%20Minutes%2012-16-09/Board%20of%20Commissioners%20Meeting%20Minutes%2012-16-09.txt[1/8/2010 2:48:46 PM]

                                                                       14

            1   were 379 accounts amounting to almost 619,000 dollars

            2   that we were going to go after.  Only 45 ended up going

            3   to auction of the 379, 42 were purchased, and 3 we did

            4   not receive any bids on.  We collected a total of

            5   690,000 dollars, and that's because between when we

            6   originally identified them and when they were actually

            7   collected, there was an additional billing; so that's

            8   the reason why the number increased.  So, you can see

            9   how important the lien sale process is to us as we try

           10   to manage our finances here.

           11      We continue to work with, and this is on Page 39, the

           12   bottom of Page 39, CSO Phase II, the big location for

           13   the base for that work will be the old Governor Dyer's

           14   Co-Op Market, which is located at the corner of Hemlock

           15   and Promenade Street down by the Cuffee School.  We are

           16   still negotiating with the owners of that.  It's a large

           17   group that owns it, so for them to all get together and

           18   to have any votes sometimes it's a little cumbersome.

           19      The agreed-to price is 3.3 million dollars.  That's

           20   the appraised value.  Now we're just talking about, I

           21   believe, a number of contractual items, and Laurie can

           22   give you more detail on that, Laurie Horridge, if you

           23   need it or would like it.

           24      Other than that, we'll go to Page 45.  Quarterly we

           25   have to provide to the Secretary of State's Office a
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            1   disclosure form which lists all of our consultants, and

            2   we filed that.  We always file that on time, and for the

            3   most recent period July 1 through September 30th, we

            4   filed that with the Secretary of State's Office.  It

            5   indicates who we did business with, and how much money

            6   was associated with that activity.

            7      Public Affairs is very busy helping Customer Service

            8   with calls from the monthly billing; that has all

            9   subsided now, and the Woon Watershed Program continues

           10   to be very popular with the school kids, and we're very

           11   busy on that.

           12      Legislatively, we monitored the October 28th House

           13   session.  The staff has determined that there is nothing

           14   that was passed that will impact our operation here, and

           15   there is no legislative report because there was nothing

           16   new that arose.

           17      Let's see.  Other than that, I want to let you know

           18   that we've been contacted by Clean Water Finance and DEM

           19   about whether we could accept additional stimulus or

           20   ARRA money.  They're indicating to us that it could be

           21   as little as 2 million on top of the 55 million that

           22   we've already received or as much as 10 million, and so

           23   we told them we certainly would be interested.  We can
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           24   allocate it all to the Biological Nutrient Removal

           25   Contract because it's not just the construction, but all
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            1   the inspection and testing, et cetera, that's associated

            2   with it that we could allocate that for.

            3      Now, if we get 2 million, that will be another

            4   350,000 of loan forgiveness.  If we get 10 million, it

            5   could be another million and a half of loan forgiveness.

            6   Again, the overall rate on that is less than 1 percent,

            7   so it's very attractive money; and the reason why that's

            8   becoming available is that because other recipients who

            9   said they were ready are, in fact, not ready, and so

           10   they're looking to us to utilize those funds so they

           11   don't have to turn them back; so we're doing our best to

           12   comply and to make their lives easier.

           13      Other items include, we received some thank you

           14   letters from the Walker Scholarship Committee.  You've

           15   agreed to allocate or to donate from the EEF funds a

           16   certain amount of money to support the scholarships at

           17   the Met School.  We've been doing that on a regular

           18   basis over the last several years, and they had their

           19   tournament, their golf tournament where they raised in

           20   excess of 10,000 dollars for college scholarships for

           21   that.  So, that is it, Mr. Chairman.
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           22               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you, Ray.  Having

           23   heard the Executive Director's Report, do any of our

           24   members have any questions for the Executive Director

           25   regarding his report?
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            1               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

            2               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Questions of the

            3   Executive Director regarding his report, none?

            4               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

            5               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Moving right along,

            6   we're moving on to Committee Reports and Action Items

            7   Resulting.  First committee reporting is Construction

            8   Engineering and Operations Committee.  Chairman

            9   Salvadore, do you have a report today?

           10               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Yes, we do, Mr.

           11   Chairman.

           12               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Then proceed.

           13               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  The hard-working

           14   Construction Engineering and Operations Committee met

           15   early this morning.  We have six items for consideration

           16   by the Board of Commissioners today.  The first being,

           17   Item A, Review and Approval of Resolution 2009:37,

           18   Authority to Modify Change Order Procedures related to

           19   NBC Construction Projects, and CEO recommends passage.
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           20               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

           21   approve Resolution 2009:37.  Do we have a second?

           22               COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  Second.

           23               COMMISSIONER LEONE:  Second.

           24               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Second.

           25               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Second Commissioner
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            1   Farnum, Commissioner Leone, Commissioner Worrell.

            2   Discussion on Resolution 2009:37.  Just for the benefit

            3   of the Board, basically, what this resolution does is

            4   it's codifying into our regulations, basically,

            5   procedures which were authorized by the Board

            6   previously, and we are now, basically, putting them

            7   formally into our rules and regulations.  Is that pretty

            8   accurate, Mr. Chairman?

            9               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Yes.

           10               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Is there discussion or

           11   questions regarding Resolution 2009:37?

           12               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           13               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

           14   those that are in favor will say aye.

           15               THE COMMISSION:  Aye.

           16               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed?

           17               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)
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           18               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none opposed,

           19   and the motion carries.

           20                  (MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY)

           21               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Further report.

           22               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Our second item,

           23   Item B, Review and Approval of Resolution 2009:38,

           24   Authorization for the Executive Director and Chairman of

           25   the NBC Board of Commissioners to Approve Engineering

                        ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC.  (401) 946-5500

                                                                       19

            1   Contract Amendments, and the CEO recommends passage,

            2   Mr. Chairman.

            3               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you, Chairman.

            4   Is there a second?

            5               COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.

            6               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Second Commissioner

            7   Montanari.  Before we move on a vote, I would like to

            8   have the Executive Director, again, give a full

            9   description of this resolution.

           10               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  I'd be happy to.  Let me

           11   just refer back to the prior item.  The Board has a

           12   standing authorization to the Executive Director and the

           13   Chairman to approve construction contract change orders

           14   up to an aggregate amount of 5 percent of the contract

           15   award.
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           16      What we're requesting in Resolution 2009:38, what

           17   we're discussing at the moment is almost a mirror image

           18   of that.  For engineering contract amendments, we do not

           19   have that authority at this time, and we're looking for

           20   that authority to approve up to 5 percent of the awarded

           21   amount or 20,000 dollars, whichever is greater, because

           22   the engineering contracts tend to be much smaller in

           23   size; and it would require the normal internal reviews

           24   and justifications, and then when it was ready for

           25   approval, both the Chairman and I could sign off on any
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            1   contract amendment that was up to 5 percent or series of

            2   contracts up to 5 percent or 20,000 dollars, whichever

            3   is greater.

            4      Now, the Committee wanted us to make sure that we

            5   were clear that these amounts that we're talking about

            6   are in aggregate, so you can't have a series of, for

            7   example, of a 20,000 dollar amount if the contract is

            8   only 100,000 dollars.  If there's one change order that

            9   hits 20,000 dollars, then we have to come back to the

           10   Board to you on a small job.

           11      On a larger job they might have a 20,000 dollar one,

           12   but then if you have a couple of more in addition that

           13   arise on a very large job, we'd have to come back to you
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           14   for approval.

           15      So, this is just to keep the project moving forward

           16   and to have authority similar to what we have in

           17   construction contracts, which, of course, are much

           18   bigger numbers than the engineering contracts are.

           19      In addition, we report to you, for the construction

           20   contract change orders, we report every month; that's at

           21   the back of my report, we track them all for you so that

           22   you can see what we're doing.  We will do the same thing

           23   for the engineering contract amendment.  We will report

           24   them to you every month, no matter how big or small they

           25   are.  Now, that is not in the resolution, and we want to
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            1   make it part of the resolution; so I'll defer to the

            2   Chairman on that.

            3               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Mr. Chairman, I

            4   made an error in recommending passage.

            5               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I think we had our

            6   discussion on this, anyway.

            7               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  We'd like to defer

            8   this item until our next meeting.  There's additional

            9   work that needs to be done on this resolution, so I

           10   withdraw the recommended passage.

           11               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you.  For the
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           12   benefit of the rest of the Board, we've heard the

           13   Executive Director's explanation of this resolution.

           14   Part of the discourse that ensued during the committee

           15   meeting, Commissioner Worrell recognized that, perhaps,

           16   the language didn't accurately reflect the intent; the

           17   Chairman agreed, and therefore, the Committee really

           18   voted to defer this matter until the proper verbiage can

           19   be inserted into this resolution to be brought up next

           20   month.  Is that accurate, Commissioner Worrell?

           21               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Yes, it's accurate

           22   with, and I hate to bring this up at this point, but

           23   would that same issue apply to the limits on the

           24   construction modifications?

           25               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Well, the construction
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            1   modifications --

            2               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Well, I didn't

            3   realize it at the time, I apologize.

            4               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  I'm not exactly sure what

            5   you're asking.  The Board has already authorized the 5

            6   percent increases on construction; and that does

            7   indicate it's in aggregate, and we do report every month

            8   to you any of the change orders that are, even the ones

            9   that are pending are reported to you.
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           10               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  On the construction,

           11   does the resolution reflect the aggregate?

           12               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  I believe it does

           13   include that.

           14               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  At a previously-passed

           15   resolution.  Well, why don't we do this:

           16               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Fine, fine.

           17               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I think what we should

           18   do is, we'll take a look at it.  Let's make sure that

           19   this language reflects everyone's concern.  We'll come

           20   back to the Board next month on this matter.

           21               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  I have the answer.  If

           22   you look, Resolution 2009:37, behind the memo there's an

           23   explanation of what we're changing, which is just

           24   procedural.  If you look on the second page, there's an

           25   Item B, and it says, the Executive Director and the
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            1   Chairman may authorize change orders aggregate amount up

            2   to a maximum of 5 percent of the contract amount.

            3               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Fine.  Then it is

            4   covered.

            5               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Yes, it is.

            6               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Fine.

            7               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  So, back on track,
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            8   Chairman Salvadore moves that we defer Item 2009:38.

            9               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Second.

           10               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Seconded by

           11   Commissioner Worrell.  Further discussion?

           12               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           13               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

           14   those that are in favor will say aye.

           15               THE COMMISSION:  Aye.

           16               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed?

           17               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           18               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none opposed,

           19   and the motion carries.

           20                  (MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY)

           21               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Further report,

           22   Chairman Salvadore.

           23               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Item C, Review and

           24   Approval of Resolution 2009:39, Authority to Amend

           25   Contract 09:304.61P with Dewberry-Goodkind,
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            1   Incorporated, to Complete the North Providence Inflow

            2   Study, and the amount is 19,000 dollars; and CEO

            3   recommends passage, Mr. Chairman.

            4               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you.  We have a

            5   motion to approve Resolution 2009:39.  Do we have a
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            6   second?

            7               COMMISSIONER LEONE:  Second.

            8               COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.

            9               COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

           10               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Leone,

           11   Commissioner Montanari.  Is that Commissioner Brown?

           12               COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Yes.

           13               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Brown.

           14   Basically, this is the resolution for a change order,

           15   the work that was contracted for was, obviously, more

           16   extensive than originally anticipated.  This change

           17   order reflects that.  So, we have a motion; we have a

           18   second.  Is there further discussion or explanation

           19   necessary on Resolution 2009:39?

           20               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           21               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

           22   those that are in favor will say aye.

           23               THE COMMISSION:  Aye.

           24               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed?

           25               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)
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            1               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none opposed,

            2   and the motion carries.

            3                  (MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY)
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            4               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Further report.

            5               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Item 4, Review and

            6   Approval of Resolution 2009:40 Contract Number 705.00C,

            7   Central Avenue Pump Station Upgrades, Recommendation to

            8   Increase the Limit for Change Order Requests, and the

            9   amount is 115,000 dollars, and CEO recommends passage,

           10   Mr. Chairman.

           11               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

           12   approve Resolution 2009:40.  Do we have a second?

           13               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Second.

           14               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Second Commissioner

           15   Worrell.  Since this matter reflects the issue we were

           16   just discussing.  Perhaps the Executive Director can now

           17   give his explanation of how it's relevant.

           18               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  This

           19   contract was awarded back in June.  They began work in

           20   August.  One of the items that they needed to undertake

           21   was to put in a new force main on Central Avenue and to

           22   tie it into the existing pump station.

           23      The record drawings of what was in the field was what

           24   we based the design on.  As it turns out, those record

           25   drawings were not accurate, so when they opened up the
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            1   ground and they began their work, what they found was
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            2   that the piping was much deeper; and the soil was very

            3   unstable, and there was an excessive amount of

            4   groundwater really complicating their work.

            5      So, what should have been just a few days' work

            6   turned into a two-week effort, and the contractor had to

            7   keep a generator on site, for example, to continue to

            8   run the sewerage pumps so we could bypass the force main

            9   in order to make the improvements.

           10      The final cost approached 115,000 dollars, and so

           11   we're asking for your authorization for that amount in

           12   addition to the 5 percent.  We've been talking about the

           13   5 percent amount in the first couple of discussions

           14   we've had.

           15      Because this is only a half-a-million-dollar job, 5

           16   percent would be 25,000 dollars.  So, this is an example

           17   of how, while, we have authority up to 5 percent.

           18   Whenever we exceed it in aggregate we need to come back

           19   to you for further authorizations, and that's what we're

           20   doing here.  We're asking for 115,000 plus the 5

           21   percent, on top of the 5 percent that's already

           22   authorized.

           23               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Do members of our Board

           24   understand how this is being applied, this process?  Are

           25   there any questions regarding this?  I would like to
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            1   make sure everyone is really clear on how this is being

            2   applied.

            3               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

            4               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  I believe we

            5   have a motion to approve Resolution 2009:40.  I believe

            6   there was a second by Commissioner Worrell.  Is there

            7   discussion on this resolution?

            8               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

            9               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Further discussion on

           10   Resolution 2009:40?

           11               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           12               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of

           13   those that are in favor will say aye.

           14               THE COMMISSION:  Aye.

           15               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed?

           16               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           17               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none opposed,

           18   and the motion carries.

           19                  (MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY)

           20               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Further business, Mr.

           21   Chairman.

           22               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Item E, Review and

           23   Approval of Resolution 2009:41, Kruger Procurement

           24   Agreement-Field's Point Wastewater Treatment Facility,

           25   Project 109D, American Recovery and Reinvestment Act,
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            1   Buy American Requirements, and the amount is 225,548

            2   dollars, Mr. Chairman, and CEO recommends approval.

            3               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

            4   approve Resolution 2009:41.  Is there a second?

            5               COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  Second.

            6               COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Second.

            7               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Farnum,

            8   Commissioner Brown.  By way of a brief explanation, this

            9   change order is required for us to be in compliance with

           10   the stimulus package money that we have received

           11   pursuant to our Bio-nutrient Removal Program.  This will

           12   bring us into the Buy American provision, so that would

           13   mean that we wouldn't put at risk any of those proceeds

           14   that we are receiving as part of the stimulus package.

           15   Buy American costs us an additional 225,000 dollars, but

           16   it's a small price to pay for the 55-some-odd million

           17   dollars we're going to receive.

           18      So, having said that, a further explanation is in

           19   your package.  We have a motion; we have a second.  Is

           20   there discussion on this resolution?  Discussion on

           21   Resolution 2009:41?

           22               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           23             (COMMISSIONER DiCHIRO IS NOW PRESENT)

           24               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Hearing none, all of
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           25   those that are in favor will say aye.
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            1               THE COMMISSION:  Aye.

            2               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed?

            3               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

            4               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none opposed,

            5   and that motion carries.

            6                  (MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY)

            7               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Further business,

            8   Chairman Salvadore.

            9               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Last item, Item F,

           10   Review and Approval of Resolution 2009:42, Authorization

           11   for Purchase of Computer Hardware for the Human Machine

           12   Interface Implementation at Field's and Bucklin Point

           13   Wastewater Treatment Facility, Project Number 809, and

           14   the amount is 96,350 dollars.  CEO recommends passage,

           15   Mr. Chairman.

           16               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  We have a motion

           17   by Chairman Salvadore to approve Resolution 2009:42.  Is

           18   there a second?

           19               COMMISSIONER MONTANARI:  Second.

           20               COMMISSIONER MILAS:  Second.

           21               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  Second.

           22               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Montanari,
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           23   Commissioner Milas, Commissioner Worrell.  Do the

           24   Members want to hear an explanation because it's in your

           25   packet?  Ray.
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            1               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Sure.  It's pretty

            2   straightforward, actually.  As you know from some of the

            3   approvals that you made in prior months, we're upgrading

            4   the control systems at Field's Point and Bucklin Point.

            5   This is the hardware associated with that upgrade.

            6      One piece of it, 24,800 dollars was for Hewlett

            7   Packard hardware.  We were able to procure that through

            8   the State's master price agreement.  We have access to

            9   that and authorization to buy from that list.

           10      And so, that gave us a very good price on the Hewlett

           11   Packard equipment.  For non-Hewlett Packard equipment,

           12   the only way we could obtain that is by going out to

           13   bid.  We received three bids, and the low bidder in the

           14   amount of 71,546 was from Wonderwear Northeast.

           15      As it turns out, they also were the ones that were

           16   the low bid for the software.  So, when you combine

           17   those two amounts, it's 96,350 dollars, and it is for

           18   the hardware associated with the upgrade of the control

           19   systems at the two treatment plants.

           20               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Okay.  Having heard the
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           21   explanation, are there any questions regarding

           22   Resolution 2009:42, the computer hardware?

           23               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           24               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion; we

           25   have a second.  No further discussion.  All of those
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            1   that are in favor will say aye.

            2               THE COMMISSION:  Aye.

            3               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed?

            4               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

            5               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none opposed,

            6   and the motion carries.

            7                  (MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY)

            8               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Commissioner Salvadore.

            9               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  That concludes

           10   CEO's report for December 16, 2009, Mr. Chairman.

           11               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much,

           12   Mr. Chairman.  Moving right along, the next committee

           13   reporting is the Finance Committee, in the absence of

           14   Chair Andrade and the Chairman who chaired the meeting.

           15   There were no items for action.  The next committee

           16   reporting would be Personnel.

           17               COMMISSIONER CAMPBELL:  No report.

           18               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  The Personnel Committee
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           19   has no report.  Rules and Regulations.

           20               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  No report.

           21               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No report from Rules

           22   and Regulations.  The committee on Long Range Planning.

           23               COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:  No report, Mr.

           24   Chairman.

           25               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  They have no report.

                        ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC.  (401) 946-5500

                                                                       32

            1   The next committee reporting would be the Citizens

            2   Advisory Group.  Harold, do you have a report for us

            3   today?

            4               MR. GADON:  Yes, I do.

            5               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Of course you do.

            6   Proceed.

            7               MR. GADON:  Thank you.  The CAC Meeting was

            8   held last Wednesday at the J&W Culinary Arts Museum in

            9   the recreated historic dining area.  The two new

           10   attendees were introduced, Major Michael Quinn, Johnson

           11   & Wales Executive Director of Safety and Security,

           12   that's thanks to the Chairman, and Marci Cole, Save the

           13   Bay Coastal Ecologist.  Jamie presented the previous

           14   month's report, and then Kristen Puleo, J&W Museum

           15   Program Coordinator, gave a brief interesting history of

           16   the museum.
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           17      During the discussions that followed, it was reported

           18   that the CSO tunnel was in much use and performed well

           19   during the previous period.

           20      Phil Holmes, our shellfisherman representative and

           21   member, however, noted that an area of approximately 200

           22   acres off Conimucut Point has been closed due to

           23   non-point runoff.  Eric Beck from DEM promised to look

           24   into it and to review this situation and report at our

           25   next meeting.  Although this is not the NBC area, it
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            1   detracts from the hundreds of millions of dollars spent

            2   to clean up the bay while other sources are allowed to

            3   pollute.

            4      A consensus was reached that again though this is

            5   outside the NBC area, the state should mandate that

            6   hookups be made where there is available existing sewer

            7   lines to avoid polluting the bay.

            8      After adjournment, the museum was available to be

            9   toured and refreshments enjoyed.  Our 2010 schedule will

           10   follow the Board's schedule.  The CAC wishes all a happy

           11   holiday season, and see you next year.

           12               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Harold, thank you.

           13   Next committee reporting would be the Executive

           14   Committee, and the Executive Committee has not met.  Ad
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           15   Hoc Committee on Compensation.

           16               COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  No report.

           17               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No report.  Ad Hoc

           18   Internal Ethics Committee.  I saw Commissioner DiChiro

           19   here.

           20               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Yes.  He just had to step

           21   out, Mr. Chairman.  There is no report.

           22               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No report.

           23   Legislative Committee.  Joanne, do you have a report for

           24   us?  Is she here?  I saw her.

           25               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  She just stepped out, and
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            1   I do not believe she has a report.  I covered it in my

            2   report, Mr. Chairman.

            3               COMMISSIONER NATHAN:  Have you heard

            4   anything about bond issues going on to next year, that

            5   matching kind of bond issue that comes up every two

            6   years or so?

            7               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  I have not heard anything

            8   yet.

            9               COMMISSIONER NATHAN:  Because I heard that

           10   the amount left is low.

           11               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  I'll check into that.

           12   We'll see what we can find out for you.
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           13               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  The next report is the

           14   Chairman's Report.  Just a couple of things I'd like to

           15   say.  The first thing, of course, is, November 4th, the

           16   last Board meeting was a historic day, you don't know

           17   that, in the history of the Bay Commission because it

           18   was the first meeting that the Chairman missed in 30

           19   years.  So, I'm sorry, but I heard the meeting was

           20   well-covered by our Vice Chair who did an exemplary job,

           21   and I don't know if I should be concerned about my job;

           22   but he did a great job.

           23               COMMISSIONER BROWN:  It wasn't the same.

           24               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  I want you to know that

           25   it was very distressful for me to have missed my first
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            1   meeting in 30 years, but I know I'm in good hands.  I'd

            2   like to congratulate Joe Crosby.  These kinds of efforts

            3   that are displayed every single day that we never hear

            4   about, it just goes to demonstrate the commitment that

            5   the NBC family has to making Narragansett Bay Commission

            6   the superior agency that it is, and I know we've

            7   expressed our gratitude to not only he, but all of the

            8   employees and staff of Narragansett Bay Commission,

            9   truly.  It's what makes the Narragansett Bay Commission

           10   the agency that it is.  So, we want to thank Joe.  On
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           11   your desk is a press release.

           12               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  I'll pass those out.

           13               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Maybe it's not.  The

           14   Board authorized and the staff negotiated health

           15   insurance a couple of months ago switching our plan from

           16   Blue Cross to United Health.

           17      The plan is substantially the same.  The coverage is

           18   substantially the same.  The major difference is that a

           19   switch to the United Health Plan would actually save the

           20   Narragansett Bay Commission approximately 200,000

           21   dollars.

           22      Where we thought that we had agreement prior to the

           23   filing of a grievance, we proceeded.  You all heard

           24   expert testimony from Judy Besse.  She gave an excellent

           25   presentation; she talked about the differences.  She was
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            1   retained to research for us differences in the coverage

            2   and cost.

            3      I'm pleased to say that, unfortunately, we ended up

            4   in a process of arbitration, but we were successful in

            5   that arbitration; and we are now, our employees are now

            6   covered by United Health at a cost of approximately

            7   close to 200,000 dollars a year savings to the Board and

            8   the Commission, and that in addition to that as part of
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            9   that package, United Health will assist us in creating a

           10   wellness package for our employees as well.  So, did

           11   this hit the street yet, Jamie?

           12               MS. SAMONS:  No.  It will go out this

           13   afternoon.

           14               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  It will go out this

           15   afternoon.  I wanted to make sure that all of our

           16   Commissioners were aware that we succeeded and we were

           17   successful in that arbitration process, and that

           18   resulted in a dramatic health cost insurance reduction

           19   to the Bay Commission.

           20      I would like to mention in passage, at the October

           21   meeting I mentioned to the Board that we were trying to

           22   plan a meeting with Mayor Cicilline.  Mayor Cicilline is

           23   abundantly aware that the volume of water being used in

           24   the City's systems and their wholesalers are lower as

           25   well, which will probably result in a drop in revenues
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            1   to Providence Water as well, and you've heard me talk in

            2   the past about possible affiliation with Providence

            3   Water.

            4      While I have nothing concrete enough to speak to you

            5   about today, I will tell you that I believe it is the

            6   Mayor's intention to make reference to the Providence
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            7   Water Supply Board's future at his State of the City

            8   address in January and possibly his Budget Address in

            9   February.

           10      It's my expectation that substantive discussions

           11   regarding Providence Water Supply Board pursuant to

           12   Narragansett Bay Commission involvement will ensue

           13   shortly after that.  As soon as I have more detail, I

           14   will be happy to share it with the members of the Board.

           15      The other issue is, we move along in developing

           16   Phase II.  The Chair along with the Executive Director

           17   and Joe Pratt and our Public Affairs people intend to

           18   meet with the business community in Olneyville.  What

           19   would you refer to that section of the City?  There's

           20   going to be some major disruption there in the near

           21   future.

           22               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  It is Olneyville.

           23               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  In the Olneyville

           24   section.  It is our intention to make a direct outreach

           25   effort to the merchants and explain to them that there
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            1   will be disruption in that area, that it is Narragansett

            2   Bay Commission's one intention to mitigate the

            3   disruption to the greatest degree possible.

            4      And second of all, when we are finished in that area,
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            5   to leave that area a better area than we found it, and

            6   we're going to do that by a direct outreach effort.

            7   I'll be involved in knocking on doors, door to door,

            8   along with the Executive Director and anyone else who

            9   wants to come.  We want to make sure that our community

           10   relations remain intact.

           11      One last issue, you may have read in the recent

           12   Providence Journal about the, it's the WaterFront

           13   Redevelopment Initiative by the Providence Planning

           14   Department.  Prior to this, it was under the Cianci

           15   Administration.  It was the Three Cities Program, and

           16   now it's WaterFront Redevelopment.  I don't know what

           17   they call that program now, but it was recently in the

           18   paper where the City intends to, I don't want to say

           19   condemn, but they're going to take control of about 590

           20   acres in this general area.  Laurie and I have talked

           21   about it.  She's on it.

           22               MS. HORRIDGE:  They will not be condemning

           23   590 acres.  They're just going to turn that into a

           24   redevelopment area.  There are three parcels within

           25   there that they will take by eminent domain, and one of
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            1   them is the former Inge property and some property

            2   closer to Save the Bay.  It's very -- actually, the
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            3   total is probably, like, 10 acres.  It's not a lot.

            4               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Just so the Board is

            5   aware, we recognize that we're not directly impacted,

            6   but I just want to make sure that collaterally that

            7   we're not impacted; and so we're on top of that.  We're

            8   getting apprised of all of the issues, so if it does

            9   affect us, we'll know.

           10      I would just like to say, again, and you heard the

           11   Executive Director's news that we may receive or be

           12   entitled to between 2 million and 10 million dollars of

           13   additional stimulus money, and the reason why we're

           14   going to be in line for that money is because this Board

           15   approved us going forward looking into the future and

           16   authorizing us to go out and request proposals just in

           17   anticipation of Congress enacting a stimulus package.

           18      And but for the foresight of this Board, we would not

           19   be in the position that we're in.  We were very

           20   fortuitous to have done that, and this, today's news is

           21   really demonstrative of the fact that this Board is

           22   always ahead of the curve, and I want to thank you and

           23   appreciate your support of that effort.

           24      Other than that, I would just like to say the holiday

           25   is upon us.  I would just like to personally express my
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            1   gratitude to all of you for all of your efforts in the

            2   past.  It's truly an honor to be affiliated with a Board

            3   of Directors that participates and contributes, and I

            4   wish all of you a very, very happy and safe holiday.

            5   Thank you.  That concludes the Chairman's report.  Next

            6   orders of business is New Business.  Is there any new

            7   business to come before the Commission?

            8               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

            9               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  No new business.  Other

           10   Business.  Director, do you have some other business

           11   regarding the awards?

           12               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Yes.  We have two short

           13   presentations we'd like to show you.  We're going to

           14   drop the screen in a minute.  One is on the first year

           15   of operations, the CSO facilities.  Joe Pratt is going

           16   to do that, so if you could just listen in.  I know I

           17   get asked all the time how the tunnel is doing, if it's

           18   having the impact that it was expected to.

           19      And then the second one will be on the wind turbines.

           20   Tom Uva is just going to do that.  He has a couple of

           21   slides, and he has that really interesting video that

           22   the Airport Corporation's consultant provided to us.

           23      In addition, we have for you some pens which it's

           24   actually a pen and a little pen light that we'd like all

           25   of you to have.  Tom Uva produced those to recognize the
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            1   National Pretreatment Award that we received and was

            2   acknowledged up here just a month or two ago.  So, he

            3   got one for all of his staff and also made provision

            4   that each of you would be able to receive one of those.

            5      So, hopefully you'll enjoy those, and if I can have

            6   everyone just sit tight, the Chairman and I will get out

            7   of the way.  We'll drop the screen, and we'll give you a

            8   quick presentation on CSO Phase I, First Year of

            9   Operations.

           10               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  All right.  So, we have

           11   a luncheon being prepared, so we're going to breeze

           12   through this really quick; and then we're going to enjoy

           13   some lunch.

           14               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  When you get your pens, I

           15   was just told they don't come with directions, so you

           16   have to take the little piece off the light end of it;

           17   and then if you just press it, the light will come on,

           18   and if you pull the cap off, the pen's at the other end.

           19      If you push the little light, if you push it into the

           20   table and then release it, then it will stay on.  It

           21   doesn't work?  You have to take the cap and the ring

           22   off.  It's a two-prong safety feature.  Joe, are you

           23   ready to go?

           24               MR. PRATT:  Yes.  If I could have your

           25   attention, please.  I'm going to run through this rather
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            1   quickly.  I may sound like I'm emphasizing a few

            2   negative items, but this is a good news presentation.

            3   The first thing I'm going to cover is the system a

            4   little bit.

            5      Next slide, please.  This is the program, the 2.2

            6   billion.  This is the overall program, three phases.

            7   Phase I is shown on that slide.  The critical item on

            8   that slide is right down here at the bottom.  Everything

            9   is designed to capture this storm.  That's why you got

           10   62 million up here (indicating), with that storm through

           11   secondary treatment.

           12      The next side, please.  This is the system.  You're

           13   well aware of the tunnel.  The green areas represent

           14   drop shafts, pump stations.  There's another drop shaft

           15   located here (indicating).

           16      Next side, please.  This is a schematic of the

           17   system.  It's important to look at it from this angle

           18   because keep in mind when the tunnel's full, it's this

           19   high from the shaft (indicating), and it goes all the

           20   way out to here, so you draw a straight line across

           21   there, so you get a full tunnel from that standpoint.

           22      The difference between the design capacity and the

           23   actual capacity, if we design based on the size of the
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           24   tunnel alone, when we were finished building it, we

           25   calculated all the little nooks and crannies and the
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            1   add-its and the drop shafts and the big shafts and all

            2   of those things, filled them up with water, and it comes

            3   out to 66.5 million gallons.

            4      Next slide, please.  I'm in the control strategies

            5   now.  There's two main strategies.  The inflow strategy,

            6   that happens in wet weather.  That's when flow's going

            7   into the tunnel.  The pump out control strategy, that

            8   basically happens in dry weather when we're pumping

            9   stuff out of the tunnel.

           10      Next slide, please.  I'll try to run through them

           11   all.  These are the objectives of the program.  We want

           12   to maximize capture.  We don't want to, when I say

           13   protect the tunnel, we're talking a whole system.  If

           14   you fill it up too much, it's a little bit difficult to

           15   pump out, so you're protecting the pumps.  We want to

           16   pump the secondary treatment whenever we can, all the

           17   time, whenever we can.  If we can't do that, we put it

           18   through the wet weather facility, which is primary

           19   treatment.

           20      Next slide, please.  We monitor flow into the tunnel.

           21   We monitor the level in the tunnel.  We monitor
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           22   rainfall.  We monitor the overflows in the interceptor

           23   release.  We actually measure the flow into the tunnel

           24   and the level of the water in the tunnel, the rainfall.

           25   We monitor the others.
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            1      Next slide, please.  Here's the points where we do

            2   that.  We do the flow with all the approach channels.

            3   We do the levels of the two access shafts.

            4      Next slide, please.  Okay.  We started operations on

            5   the first of November.  It was a phased approach.  We

            6   ran through filling this tunnel to 30 percent and

            7   stopping, to 60 percent and stopping, different rain

            8   events.  We had a lot of people watching it and never so

            9   many watched so little, and the count was even less,

           10   probably.

           11      So far during the year, we've had 72 significant rain

           12   events.  We captured 1.2 billion gallons of CSO and 171

           13   million gallons had to go through the wet weather

           14   facility, and I'll explain to you why that number's so

           15   high in just a moment.

           16      Next slide, please.  This last year has really been

           17   much wetter than average.  The average, or you can read

           18   that, the average annual rainfall in Providence is 46.4

           19   or 5 inches, and just in case you were wondering, that
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           20   average is creeping up over the last 8 years.

           21      When we ran the simulations back in the early '90s,

           22   the average year was assumed to be 45.6 inches.  Back

           23   then we captured about a million gallons, and I think

           24   our model wasn't as good, and we did that as real world

           25   is.  For the year we're talking about, we had 56.9
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            1   inches of rain, and we captured 1.2 billion gallons of

            2   flow.

            3      Next slide, please.  One thing I want to point out

            4   here, if you look at this storm event, very large storm.

            5   I showed you 172 million gallons went through the wet

            6   weather facility, 108 was in that storm alone, so one

            7   big storm overwhelms the system; and you get a lot more

            8   flow through the wet weather facility, so that's why

            9   those numbers can get a little misleading at times.

           10   These are some of the big events we've had over the past

           11   year.  You can see the variation in the flow going into

           12   the tunnel.  It really varies a great deal.

           13      Next slide, please.  This is a little history.  These

           14   three years here were very, very wet.  This year was

           15   slightly dry.  This is the last year.  You can see how

           16   much improvement there's just been in the wet weather

           17   flow activations at Field's Point.
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           18      Next slide, please.  There's a lot of information on

           19   this, so I'm going to kind of try to capture it for you.

           20   We're really talking about NBC and DEM monitor the bay,

           21   and then in conjunction with the Department of Health,

           22   they perform analyses deciding whether or not they can

           23   open the bay to shellfishing.

           24      Progressively, it's been getting better, and they've

           25   been able to open the bay earlier and earlier.  I
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            1   suspect they're erring on the side of caution, but if

            2   you look at the Labor Day storm, that two days may sound

            3   like not very much, but 1.72 inches of rain is a lot of

            4   rain.

            5      Next slide, please.  Here's the synopsis.  Our

            6   capture is exceeding expectations.  We had a wet year,

            7   but it's working really well.  The control system is

            8   functioning very well with minimum oversight.  We're

            9   down to the point now where it's almost routine.  The

           10   inflow strategy has worked very well.  The gate closure

           11   has really worked well.  That's extremely important.  It

           12   takes 8 minutes to close the gate when you've got flow

           13   going through.

           14      Just so you understand how important it is, in 8

           15   minutes, 1.4 million gallons gets into the tunnel on
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           16   average.  So, it's important that you know what that is

           17   and that you're confident in it.

           18      The pump out strategies have been quite effective.

           19   It will get even more effective once we get variable

           20   frequency drive pumps at Ernest Street.  There's been

           21   some loading impact at Field's Point, but adjustments

           22   have been made on that; and it's under control now.

           23   I've already talked about the wet weather operations.

           24      One of the areas that's been a bit of a problem has

           25   been the flow centers measuring inflow into the tunnels.
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            1   That's a very dynamic situation, and we've had trouble

            2   particularly with one of them at the largest drop shaft;

            3   and that's just been an issue that we're still working

            4   on.

            5      The level sensors, on the other hand, we had some

            6   start-up issues, but that's been resolved.  They're

            7   working very, very effectively, and not only that, we

            8   have a lot of redundancies in our level sensors, so

            9   we're getting good reads on that.

           10      We're in the process of addressing the odor issue.

           11   The leakage is about 500 gallons per minute.  That

           12   sounds like a lot, and it represents 3/4 of a million

           13   gallons a day; but it really is relatively insignificant
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           14   and very, very easy to handle.

           15      The last item, this is almost funny to say this,

           16   floatables have not only been manageable they've almost

           17   been non-existing, and we're not exactly sure where they

           18   are.  We muck out the tunnel, the sump, and we're taking

           19   stuff out of there, but the numbers of floatables have

           20   been really low.

           21      Next slide, please.  Do you have any questions?  By

           22   the way, that is a picture from January 2008, and it's

           23   very dark and damp in the dungeon.

           24               COMMISSIONER GRAY, III:  Does the leakage

           25   address water in or water out?
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            1               MR. PRATT:  That's water in.

            2               COMMISSIONER GRAY, III:  Water in.

            3               MR. PRATT:  It doesn't leak out.  It's over

            4   100 PSI of pressure.  Water doesn't leak out.  How does

            5   it leak in?  Because you're under 100 PSI of pressure.

            6   You want to see how it leaks in?  Right there

            7   (indicating).  That's the leak.

            8               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  There's no way you can

            9   make it watertight.

           10               MR. PRATT:  It's so deep, it's under a huge

           11   amount of water pressure.  You might be able to make it
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           12   watertight, but you'd pay a hell of a lot of money for

           13   it; and you probably wouldn't succeed.

           14               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  You could just pump it

           15   out and treat it.

           16               MR. PRATT:  Any other questions?

           17               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           18               MR. PRATT:  Thank you.  That concludes my

           19   report.

           20               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  Thanks, Joe.  While Tom's

           21   coming up to talk about the wind turbine project, I want

           22   to let you know that Joe was in New York last week to

           23   receive an award from McGraw-Hill Construction.  They

           24   publish engineering news records.

           25      Our CSO Program received the best Civil Public Works
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            1   Project Award for the Northeast in 2009.  So, another

            2   recognition of a great project well done by Joe and his

            3   staff and all of the NBC staff and our contractors.

            4               MR. UVA:  Good afternoon, Commissioners.  It

            5   is after 12.  Actually, I'm going to stay right here.

            6   I'm going to give you a very brief update about our wind

            7   turbine project.

            8      We received an EPA grant back in 2005, the end of

            9   2005 for 35,000 dollars to investigate alternative
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           10   energy and energy conservation here at the NBC, and what

           11   we found is that wind energy would be a good opportunity

           12   for us here at Field's Point and biogas would be a good

           13   opportunity at Bucklin Point.

           14      We've completed the 18-month feasibility study on

           15   wind resources, and this is the document that we're

           16   going to be submitting to the EDC; and this is to get a

           17   25,000 dollar reimbursement on the feasibility study

           18   grant that we did.  We did this all in-house.

           19      The consultants tell me that this would have cost us

           20   over 100,000 dollars easily to do if we contracted with

           21   somebody.  And we look at many different factors.

           22   Turbine availability, if we order one, can we get it

           23   delivered?  Energy payback, how much energy would these

           24   things generate?  Electric costs, how much electricity

           25   will be saved?
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            1      We also met with the neighbors around here.  We sent

            2   letters out to 300 neighbors that border Field's Point

            3   to see if they would like the idea of having a wind

            4   turbine, and everybody was very favorable about it.

            5      We did have two people that were concerned.  One

            6   person was concerned that it might kill Bald Eagles if

            7   we had some nesting in the area, and somebody else's
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            8   concern was it might interfere with their television

            9   reception; but so far it looks pretty promising that the

           10   neighbors are supporting the project.

           11      We did a cursory review of state and local permitting

           12   issues, and we're going to, beginning in January, we'll

           13   be doing avian studies just to see what type of birds

           14   fly around here, and would it be any problem.

           15      Our main problem has been with the FAA.  We have

           16   three locations that we indicated, one is near the

           17   City's transfer station.  Just to give you some

           18   reference, we're in the building right here (indicating)

           19   on Service Road, and as you come down Ernest Street,

           20   this is the entrance to Field's Point; and this is the

           21   City transfer station (indicating), and one is that

           22   little blue dot.

           23      Another one is right near the waterfront in a

           24   stormwater basin that we have there, and the third is in

           25   the southern corner of the plant across from the
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            1   laboratory building; and there's a pile of dirt there

            2   now, and that's the area where we are proposing to put a

            3   new lab building in this area (indicating).  The dog

            4   pound is for your reference.  We also looked at two

            5   alternative sites that have the possibility, but we
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            6   applied to the FAA for these particular sites.

            7      Here's a little bit of a time line of what we've

            8   experienced with the FAA.  We applied back in March of

            9   '08, and it's supposed to be a 90-day review; and we

           10   applied for a 400-foot turbine through those three

           11   applications that we submitted.  It took them quite a

           12   while to get back to us, but they issued us a Notice of

           13   Presumed Hazard at 400 feet; and they gave us heights of

           14   240 feet, 204 feet and 245 feet.

           15      Basically, it's not really economically prudent to

           16   put something in that height.  The payback was that

           17   unless we wanted to do it simply for propaganda purposes

           18   to show that we were a green agency and put up a

           19   turbine, but it wouldn't pay for itself.

           20      At that point, we sent a letter to the FAA and asked

           21   them to reconsider it at 300 feet.  At 300 feet it

           22   starts to become economically feasible to go forward

           23   with the project.  That was supposed to be about a

           24   30-day review.  You can see several months passed, and

           25   then the person at FAA asked us to do a survey so that
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            1   we'd get exact elevations at the sites, which we did

            2   within a very short period of time.  We got that into

            3   them.
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            4      They put it out for circulation, what they call

            5   circulation on their website, and they had one letter

            6   from our local Green Airport; and Green Airport said

            7   that they wouldn't have a problem with it as long as it

            8   didn't interfere with their operations that they wanted

            9   to make sure that it didn't interfere with their

           10   operations.

           11      Apparently, the FAA has been reviewing our submittals

           12   based upon old regulations, and they weren't looking at

           13   new regulations, even though they're their regulations,

           14   and they compare it to the old technology.  The

           15   regulations that we're updating are based upon new

           16   flight landing procedures and the new electronics that

           17   they have on the planes.

           18      So, here's where we are now.  We had to resubmit

           19   applications, and we submitted them at 360 feet; and

           20   we're still waiting for the FAA.  We have them on speed

           21   dial.  We call them every day hoping to get a favorable

           22   ruling from them, and that's all that's holding us up to

           23   going out to bid.

           24      This is a little graphic here that I want to show

           25   you.  When we met with the Green Airport, they were very
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            1   supportive of our project, and we were very pleased
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            2   about that.  As a matter of fact, they even had their

            3   aeronautical consultant meet with us, and he had this

            4   graphic that he developed; and this is the flight path

            5   coming into Green Airport.  You can see Green Airport is

            6   now at the top of the screen, and here is East

            7   Providence.

            8      Here are the turbines that are proposed for Field's

            9   Point, and in red are the turbines proposed for the Save

           10   the Bay facility.  They're 400 feet tall.  These

           11   turbines are about 320 feet, and you can see we're

           12   clearly under the flight path.

           13      We're going to see the Save the Bay turbine in a

           14   second come up, and you're going to see that that 400

           15   feet cuts into the flight path.  The FAA's recently

           16   turned down their application to put in a 400-foot

           17   turbine on their property.  You can see that there

           18   (indicating).  Four-hundred feet would, they're

           19   impacting right about the top of the -- cell, which is

           20   right about that portion there, so their blade would go

           21   right into the flight path.  Not a good situation.

           22      This is another approach, a view that the aeronautics

           23   consultant did for us, and he submitted it to the FAA;

           24   and he also wrote the FAA a letter in support, and he

           25   asked the FAA to review our proposal under the current
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            1   regulations so that they would get it correct; and this

            2   application shows turbines at the NBC at 400 feet.  It

            3   clearly shows that we are under the flight path.

            4      You can see, it's a little tough to see, but these

            5   are 400, 412 feet, and we're still well below the flight

            6   path.  We're not proposing to go that high.

            7      If we put in turbines similar to what they have in

            8   Portsmith, 336 feet high, each one of those would

            9   provide probably 21 to 25 percent of the power that

           10   Field's Point generates, that Field's Point uses,

           11   actually.

           12      And you can see this is a little summary of the

           13   different types of turbines and how much energy you get

           14   out of them, and these are all 300-foot turbines; and

           15   you can see what happens when you jump up to 336 feet.

           16   You can go with a larger generator, and this shows, this

           17   line shows our energy demand at Field's Point, and if we

           18   had three turbines, we would be generating almost 65 to

           19   75 percent of the power at Field's Point; and these are

           20   three different ones that are about 335 feet tall.  If

           21   we move forward and put multiple ones in, we would be

           22   the first in the state to have a wind farm.  Any

           23   questions on that?

           24               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           25               MR. UVA:  Yes.
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            1               COMMISSIONER WORRELL:  At one point I

            2   thought that we were talking about having excess power

            3   that we would sell back into the grid.

            4               MR. UVA:  What will happen is, that's called

            5   net metering, and we would have net metering; and what

            6   would happen is there's times when the wind is very

            7   powerful, and at that time that instantaneous amount

            8   would be more than what we'd use, and we would provide

            9   that back to the grid, and our meter would spin

           10   backwards.  So, we're just comparing that to our total

           11   electric use.

           12               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any other

           13   questions?

           14               MR. UVA:  I want to, basically, recognize

           15   Jim McCaughey and Barry Wenskowicz.  Jim is my

           16   Environmental Safety Technical Assistance Manager, and

           17   Barry Wenskowicz is our Pollution Prevention Engineer.

           18   They've been studying this project extensively for the

           19   past couple of years, and they're doing a great job.

           20               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Thank you very much,

           21   Tom.

           22               RAYMOND MARSHALL:  So, you can see how

           23   lucrative it is, if we can make this happen.  That's the

           24   reason why we've been so diligent in our effort to get
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           25   this approved, and hopefully, we'll get good news soon.
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            1               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have one item left.

            2   I told my wife and son we were having a holiday luncheon

            3   today.  I'm not surprised to see my son here.  He loves

            4   tenderloin.  My son, Derek, is here.

            5      We've heard the presentations.  Obviously, the

            6   Narragansett Bay Commission staff has been very busy

            7   this year.  We have an enormously busy next year, and

            8   we're going to continue the progress on the mission that

            9   we've embarked on.  So, thank you all very much for all

           10   you've done this past year.  Commissioner Salvadore,

           11   Item Number 8.

           12               COMMISSIONER SALVADORE:  Move for

           13   adjournment, Mr. Chairman.

           14               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  We have a motion to

           15   adjourn.

           16               COMMISSIONER FARNUM:  Second.

           17               COMMISSIONER KIMBALL:  Second.

           18               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Seconded by

           19   Commissioner Farnum and Commissioner Kimball and all of

           20   the entire Board.  All in favor of adjournment will say

           21   aye.

           22               THE COMMISSION:  Aye.
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           23               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Are there any opposed?

           24               THE COMMISSION:  (No response)

           25               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  There are none opposed,
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            1   the motion carries.

            2                  (MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY)

            3               CHAIRMAN MESOLELLA:  Please stay and enjoy

            4   our holiday luncheon.  Thank you very much.

            5             (BOARD MEETING CLOSED AT 12:25 P.M.)

            6
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            1                     C E R T I F I C A T E

            2

            3

            4               I, Heather Marie Finger, do hereby certify
                that the foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete
            5   transcript of my notes taken at the above-entitled
                hearing.
            6

            7               IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand
                this 31st day of December 2009.
            8

            9

           10

           11

           12           ________________________________________
                        HEATHER MARIE FINGER, CSR, NOTARY PUBLIC
           13           MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 4/02/12

           14

           15

           16

           17

           18
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           19

           20

           21

           22

           23         DATE:  December 16, 2009

           24        IN RE:  NBC Monthly Board Meeting

           25   HEARING OF:  Narragansett Bay Commission
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